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SEDGWICK LLP

STEPHANIE A. SHERIDAN, State Bar No. 135910
stephanie.sheridan@sedgwicklaw.com

ANTHONY J. ANSCOMBE, State Bar No. 135883
anthony.anscombe@sedgwicklaw.com

MEEGAN B. BROOKS, State Bar No. 298570
meegan.brooks@sedgwicklaw.com

333 Bush Street, 30th Floor

San Francisco, CA 94104-2834

Telephone: 415.781.7900

Facsimile: 415.781.2635

Attorneys for Defendant
AM RETAIL GROUP, INC.

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
NORTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

MARIA RAMOS, on behalf of herself and CASE NO.
all others similarly situated,
NOTICE OF REMOVAL
Plaintiff,
[Originally San Francisco County Superior
V. Court Case No. CGC 16-552324]

AM Retail Group, Inc., a Delaware
Corporation; and DOES 1-100,

Defendants.

TO THE JUDGES OF THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FOR THE NORTHERN
DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA, AND TO THE CLERK OF THAT COURT:

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that Defendant AM Retail Group, Inc. (“AMRG”), pursuant
to 28 U.S.C. §§ 1332, 1441, 1446, and 1453, hereby removes the above-captioned action from
the Superior Court of California, County of San Francisco to the United States District Court for
the Northern District of California.

I INTRODUCTION

I. This Action is properly removed to this Court pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1441
because this Court has jurisdiction under the Class Action Fairness Act, 28 U.S.C. § 1332(d)

(“CAFA”), in that this Action is a civil action in which the alleged amount in controversy

83598424v1
-1-

NOTICE OF REMOVAL




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

Case 3:16-cv-04316-MEJ Document 1 Filed 07/29/16 Page 2 of 7

exceeds the sum of $5,000,000 exclusive of costs and interest, has more than 100 members in the
proposed putative class, and is between citizens of different states.

I1. BACKGROUND

2. On June 1, 2016, Plaintiff Maria Ramos, purportedly on behalf of herself and all
others similarly situated, filed a civil action in the San Francisco Superior Court entitled Maria
Ramos, et al. v. AM Retail Group, Inc., San Francisco County Superior Court, Case No. GCG 16-
552324. (See Exhibit A, which includes the summons, Complaint and all of the documents
served on AMRG.) AMRG has not been served with any other process or pleading, nor is it
aware of the filing of any other process or pleading.

3. The Complaint, which is styled as a class action, purports to bring claims under
California’s Unfair Competition Law (“UCL”), Business & Professions Code§ 17200, et seq.;
California’s False Advertising Law (“FAL”), Business & Professions Code § 17500, ef seq.; and
the Consumer Legal Remedies Act (“CLRA”), California Civil Code § 1750 ef seq. (Complaint
13.) Plaintiff’s Complaint arises from a purported transaction at a Bass store located in Folsom,
California, in Sacramento County. Id. 4 17.

4. The proposed putative class consists of “[a]ll individuals who, in the State of
California, purchased any item at one of Defendants’ [sic] outlet or factory stores located in the
State of California during the four (4) year period preceding the filing of this Class Action
Complaint, and who did not subsequently return the purchased item to Defendants (the ‘Class’).”
(Complaint 4 31.) Plaintiff also proposes a CLRA subclass, which has identical features to the
Class, but includes only individuals that purchased merchandise from AMRG’s California outlet
stores during the three year period preceding the commencement of this Action. /d.

5. Plaintiff served the Complaint upon AMRG by personal service on June 29, 2016.
See Exhibit A, page 45.

6. Nothing in this Notice of Removal should be interpreted as a concession of
liability, the appropriateness of venue, the appropriateness of class treatment, Plaintiff’s class
definition, or the validity of Plaintiff’s claim for relief. AMRG reserves the right to supplement

and amend this Notice of Removal.

83598424v1
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III. REQUIREMENTS FOR REMOVAL UNDER CAFA

7. This Court has original jurisdiction over this action under the Class Action
Fairness Act of 2005 (“CAFA”), codified in part at 28 U.S.C. §§ 1332 and 1453. Under CAFA, a
district court shall have original jurisdiction over any putative civil class action in which: (1)
there are at least 100 members in all proposed plaintiff classes; (2) “the matter in controversy
exceeds the sum or value of $5,000,000, exclusive of interest and costs”; and (3) “any member of
a class of plaintiffs is a citizen of a state different from any defendant.” 28 U.S.C. § 1332(d)(2,
5). Because this action meets each of CAFA’s requirements, it may be removed to federal court.
28 U.S.C. § 1441(a) (“[A]ny civil action brought in a State Court of which the district courts of
the United States have original jurisdiction, may be removed by the defendant.”).

IV. THE REQUIREMENTS FOR REMOVAL UNDER CAFA ARE SATISFIED

A. The Number of Proposed Class Members Exceeds 100

8. The Complaint alleges that members of the putative class are “so numerous that
joinder of all members is impracticable,” but does not identify the number of class members.
(Complaint 9 32.)

9. According to Plaintiff’s Complaint, the putative class is “[a]ll individuals who, in
the State of California, purchased any item at one of Defendants’ [sic] outlet or factory stores
located in the State of California during the four (4) year period preceding the filing of this Class
Action Complaint, and who did not subsequently return the purchased item to Defendants.”
(Complaint 4 31.)

10. The Complaint clearly pleads that more than 100 individuals from the State of
California purchased merchandise from an AMRG outlet store in California during the putative
class period. The size of the putative class thus well exceeds 100 members.

B. The Amount in Controversy Exceeds $5 Million

1. Defendant denies Plaintiff’s substantive allegations, the appropriateness of class
treatment, and that Plaintiff is entitled to any of the relief sought in her Complaint, and does not
waive any defense with respect to any of Plaintiff’s claims. Nonetheless, the amount in

controversy is determined by accepting Plaintiff’s allegations as true. See Cain v. Hartford Life
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& Accident Ins. Co., 890 F. Supp. 2d 1246, 1249 (C.D. Cal. 2012) (“In measuring the amount in
controversy, a court must assume that the allegations of the complaint are true and assume that a
jury will return a verdict for the plaintiff on all claims made in the complaint.”). Here, taking
Plaintiff’s allegations as true, the amount in controversy in this action (including attorney’s fees)
exceeds $5,000,000.

12. Case law is clear that “the amount-in-controversy allegation of a defendant
seeking federal-court adjudication should be accepted when not contested by the plaintiff or
questioned by the court.” Dart Cherokee Basin Operating Co., LLC v. Owens, 135 S. Ct. 547,
549-50, (2014) (citations omitted); see also Schwarzer, Tashima, et al., California Practice
Guide: Federal Civil Procedure Before Trial (2016) § 2:2395, at 2D-30 (“[D]efendant may
simply allege in its notice of removal that the jurisdictional threshold has been met and discovery
may be taken with regard to that question.”); id. § 2:3435, at 2D-172 — 173 (“Defendant’s notice
of removal ‘need include only a plausible allegation that the amount in controversy exceeds the
jurisdictional threshold.’). Further, CAFA’s legislative history indicates that even if the Court “is
uncertain about whether all matters in controversy in a purported class action do not in the
aggregate exceed the sum or value of $5,000,000, the court should err in favor of exercising
jurisdiction over the case.” Senate Report on the Class Action Fairness Act of 2005 Dates of
Consideration and Passage, S. Rep. 109-14;

13.  Plaintiff seeks restitution of “all of monies spent” associated with AMRG’s
allegedly unfair pricing practices during the last four years. (Complaint 9 53, 60.) Given the
number of outlet stores owned by AMRG, the volume of sales in each store, and the number of
potential class members who made purchases at those outlet stores, the amount in controversy
exceeds $5,000,000.

14.  Additionally, the Complaint states that Plaintiff will move to amend her
Complaint to pursue claims for actual, punitive and statutory damages (Complaint 9 66), each of
which are properly included in the calculation for determining the amount in controversy. The
CLRA provides for statutory penalties of not less than $1,000 per violation. Cal. Civ. Code §
1780(a)(1).

83598424v1
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15. Plaintiff also seeks an award of attorney’s fees. (Prayer for Relief 9§ g.) This
amount should also be included in connection with the amount in controversy. See Guglielmino
v. McKee Foods Corp., 506 F.3d 696, 700 (9th Cir. 2007). Although Defendant denies
Plaintiff’s claim for attorneys’ fees, for purposes of removal, the Ninth Circuit uses a benchmark
rate of twenty-five percent of the potential damages as the amount of attorneys’ fees. In re
Quintus Sec. Litig., 148 F. Supp. 2d 967, 973 (N.D. Cal. 2001) (benchmark for attorneys’ fees is
25% of 10 the common fund). Assuming the amount in controversy is $5,000,000, an award of
25% attorneys’ fees based upon such amount would be an additional $1,250,000.

16.  Plaintiff also seeks injunctive relief. The potential cost of compliance with a
request for injunctive relief may be considered when calculating the amount put in controversy
under CAFA. Tompkins v. Basic Research LLC, No. 5-08-244, 2008 WL 71808316, at *4 & n9
(E.D. Cal. April22, 2008) (noting that under CAFA, the amount put in controversy includes
defendants’ potential cost of compliance with a request for injunctive relief); see also James
Wm. Moore et al., Moore’s Federal Practice’s 102.26(c)(iii) (3d ed. 2010) (“The amount in
controversy in CAFA cases may be determined on the basis of the aggregate value to either the
plaintiff class members or to the defendants”). The costs to comply with an injunction could
potentially be significant and Plaintiff’s request for injunctive relief further takes the amount in
controversy over the statutory threshold. See 28 U.S.C. § 1332(d)(2).

17. While Plaintiff’s claim for restitution, in itself, puts the amount in controversy
above $5,000,000, the actual, punitive and statutory damages; attorney’s fees; and injunctive
relief requested by Plaintiff make clear that this requirement is satisfied.

C. Minimum Diversity Exists

18. The minimal diversity standard of CAFA is met as long as any one defendant is a
citizen of a different state than any of the named plaintiffs. 28 U.S.C. § 1332(d)(2)(A). Plaintiff
is a citizen of California. (Complaint q 17.)

19.  For purposes of diversity, a corporation is deemed to be a citizen of” (1) the state
under whose laws it is organized; and (2) the state of its “principal place of business.” 28 U.S.C.

§ 1332(c)(1). AMRG is a Delaware corporation with its principal executive offices in

83598424v1
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Minnesota. (Complaint § 18.) Thus, AMRG is a citizen of Minnesota and Delaware, and no
other state.

20. Thus, minimal diversity if satisfied because Plaintiff is a citizen of a state
(California) different from AMRG (Minnesota and Delaware).

D. No CAFA Exceptions Apply

21. The Action does not fall within any of exclusion to removal jurisdiction
recognized by 28 U.S.C. § 1332(d), and Plaintiff has the burden of proving otherwise. See
Serrano v. 180 Connect, Inc., 478 F.3d 1018, 1021 (9th Cir. 2007) (“[T]he party seeking remand
bears the burden to prove an exception to CAFA’s jurisdiction”).

V. THE OTHER PROCEDURAL REQUISITES FOR REMOVAL ARE SATISFIED

22.  Removal to this judicial district and division is proper under 28 U.S.C. §§
1441(a), 1446(a), because the Superior Court of the State of California for the County of San
Francisco is located within the Northern District of California.

23. This Notice of Removal is timely because it was filed within thirty days of June
29, 2016, the date on which AMRG was served with the Summons and Complaint. 28 U.S.C. §
1446(b).

24. Pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1446(a), a copy of the Summons, Complaint, and all other
documents served on AMRG are attached as Exhibit A.

25. Pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1446(d), a copy of this Notice of Removal and all
documents in support thereof and concurrently therewith are being filed with the Clerk of the
Superior Court for the County of San Francisco. Written notice of the filing of this Notice of
Removal is being served upon counsel for Plaintiff.

/17
/17
/17
/17
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VI. CONCLUSION

AMRG respectfully submits that this action is removed properly pursuant to the Class

Action Fairness Act.

DATED: July 29, 2016

83598424v1

SEDGWICK LLP

By: /s/ Stephanie A. Sheridan

Stephanie A. Sheridan
Anthony J. Anscombe
Meegan B. Brooks
Attorneys for Defendant
AM RETAIL GROUP, INC.
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

NORTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

MARIA RAMOS, on behalf of herself and CASE NO.

all others similarly situated,

Plaintiff,

AM Retail Group, Inc., a Delaware
Corporation; and DOES 1-100,

Defendants.
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‘ % — ' : o . SUM-100
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NOTICE TO DEFENDANT:

(AVISO AL DEMANDADO):

AM RETAIL GROUP, INC., a DELAWARE Corporalion;
and DOES 1 through 100,—|"rmﬁ's1v- —

YOU ARE BEING SUED BY PLAINTIFF:
(LC ESTA DEMANDANDO EL DEMANDANTE):
MARIA RAMOS, on behalf of herself and all others similariy situated,

NOTICE! You have been sued, The court may decide against you wilhout your being heard unless you respond within 30 days. Read Lhe information
belcv:.

You have 30 CALENDAR DAYS after Lhis summons and legal papers are served on you to file a wrillen response at this court and have a copy
served on the plaintiff. A letter or phone call will not prolect you. Your writen response must be in proper legal form if you want the courl to hear your
case. There may be a court form that you can use for your response. You can find these court forms and more information at the Californja Courts
Online Self-Help Center {vanw.courtinfo.ca.gov/selfhelp), yaur counly faw library, or the courthouse nearest you. If you cannoi pay the fillng fee, ask
the court clerk for a fee waiver form. I you do nal file your response on time, you may lose the case by default, arxd your wages, meney, and property
may be {aken wilhout further waming from the courl.

There are alher legal requirements. You may want to call an attamey right avay. lfyou do not know an attorney, you may want to calt an attorney
referral service. If you cannot afferd an altomey, you may be efigible for free legal services from a nongrofit legal services program, You can locale
these nonprofit groups at the California Legal Services Web site {www.lawhelpcalifornia.org), the California Courts- Online Seif-Help Center
(www.courtinfo.ca.gov/selfhalp), or by contacling your local courl of county bar association. NOTE: The court has a statutory lien for waived fees and
costs on any selllement or arbilration award of $10,000 or mare in a civil case. The courl’s llen nust be paid befora the court will dismiss the case,
FAVISO! Lo han demandado, Sino responde denlro de 30 dias, fa corte puede decidir en su conlra sin escuchar su version. Lea la informacion a
continuaciin.

Tiens 30 DIAS DE CALENDARIO despues de que le entreguen esla citacién y papeles legales para presentar una respues!a por escrito en esta
corte y hacer que se enfregue una copia al demandante. Una carla o una llamada teiefénica no o protegen. Su respuesta por escrito liene que eslar
en formalo legal correclo si desea que procesen su caso en [a corle. Es posibie que haya un formulario que usted pusda usar para su respuesta.
Puede encentrar estos formulares de la corle y méas informacién en el Ceniro de Ayuda de las Cortes de Califomia fevww.sucorte.ca.gov), en la
biblioteca de leyes de su condada o en la corle que fe quede mas cerca. Si no puede pagar 1a cuota de presentacion, plda al secrelario de la corle
que le dé un formulario de exencién de pago de cuotas, Sino presenta su respuesia a liempo, puede perder ef caso por incumplimiento y la corte fe
podré quitar su sugldo, dinero y bienes sin mas adverfencia.

Hay otros requisitos Jegales. Es recomendable que lfame a un abogado inmediatamente. SF no conoce & un abogado, puede llamar a un servicio de
remision a abogados. Sino puede pagar a un abogadp, es posible que cumpla con fos requisitos para oblener servicios legales gratuitos da un
programa de servicios legales sin fines de lucro. Puede enconlrar esfos grupos sin fines de lucro en el sitio web de Califoriia Legal Services,

{vrww Jawhelpcalifornia.org), en el Cenlro de Ayuda de fas Corles de California, (weww.sucorte.ca.gov) o poniéndose en comtacto con la corte o el
colegio de abogados focales. AVISC: Por ley, Ia corle liene derecho a reclamer jas cuolas y fos costos exenlos por impaner un gravamen sobre
cualquier recuperacitn de $10,000 6 mas de valor recibida medianfe un acuerdo o una concesion de arbilraje en un caso dg derecho civil. Tiene que
pagar el gravamen de fa corle anles de que la corle pueda desechar ¢l caso.
The name and address of the court is: CASE NUMBER:
(El nombre y direccion de la corie es): ' : {umera el Caso):

San Francisco Counly Superior Courl GE" i 6 wa 5 5 2 3 2 z'

Civil Division

400 McAllister Streef, Room 103

Sap Francisco, CA 94102

The name, address, and lelephone number of plaintiff's attomey, or plaintiff wxlhout an attomey, is;

(El nombre, la direccidn y el nimero de teléfono del abogado del damandante, o del demandante que no liene abogado, es);
Gene J, Stonebarger, Esq.; STONEBARGER LAW, APC

75 tron Peint Circle, Suite 145, Folsom, CA 95630

Tel: (916) 235-7140 Fax: (916} 235-7141
oty JUN 012018 CLERK OF THE COURT Qorkbr. . DELA VEGHNAVARRO, Roosey ooty

(For proof of service of this summons, use Proof of Service of Summons (form POS-010).)
{Para prugba de enirega de esta citalidn use el formulario Proof of Service of Summons, (POS-010)).

{SEAL) NOTICE TO THE PERSON SERVED: You are served
1. [ as anindividual defendant.
2. [ as the person sued under the ﬁcialio name of (specn'y)
* RN o INE -
3. %on behalf of (specify): o, '{b e\aware Co¢ ?(N‘O:\T Lo,
und CCP 416.10 {corporation) (] ccP 415.60 {minor)
CCP 416.20 {defunct corporation} [Jcer 418,70 {conservatee)
[[] cCP 416.40 {association or partnership) ] ccP 416.90 {aulhorized persan)
[ other (specity):
4, [Flby personal delivery on (date): LQ\Q‘O\\\\E
. i Page 1ot 4
Fosm Acopled for Mandatory Use SUMMONS American Legallet, inc, | Cone o GVl Procedure & ‘:.',%fg_;g-‘;

Judicial Conedl of Catfaria ;
SUM-CO (Rov, Juty 1, 2009) wwrw. Foerms Worklow.com
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Gene J. Stonebarger, State Bar No. 209461
Richard D. Lambert, State Bar No. 251148
STONEBARGER LAW

A Professional Corporation

75 Iron Point Circle, Ste. 145

Folsom, CA 95630

Telephone (916) 235-7140

Facsimile (916) 235-7141

Thomas A. Keamney, State Bar No. 90045
Prescott W.. Littlefield, State Bar No. 259049
KEARNEY LITTLEFIELD LLP

3436 N. Verdugo Rd, Suite 230

Glendale CA 91208

Telephone (213) 473-1900

Facsimile (213)473-1919

Attorneys for Plaintiff Maria Ramos and the Class

MARIA RAMOS, on behalf of herself and all
others similarly situated,

Plaintiff,
VS,

AM Retail Group, Inc., a Delaware Corporation;
and DOES 1-100, inclusive, '

Defendants.

oS

SUPERIOR COURT OF CALIFORNIA
COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO

¢60 16-552324

CASE NO.

CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT FOR:

1. Violation of California’s Unfair
Competition Laws (“UCL”);
California Business & Professions
Code Sections 17200, ef seq.

2. Violation of California’s False
Advertising Laws (“FAL”); California
Business & Professions Code Sections
17500, et seq.

3. Violations of California Consumer
Legal Remedies Act (“CLRA™); Civ.
Code § 1750, et seq.

[DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL]
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Plaintiff Maria Ramos, on behalf of herself and all others similarly situated, complains
and alleges upon information and belief based, among other things, upon the investigation made
by Plaintiff and by and through her attorneys against Defendants AM Retail Group, Inc. and
Does 1-100 (“Defendants™) as follows:

1.
INTRODUCTION

1. This is a class action regarding Defendants’ false and misleading advertisemeﬁt of
“market” prices, and corresponding phantom “savings” on fashion apparel sold in their “Outtet”
or “Factory” stores.

2. According to Defendants, AM Retail Group, Inc. owns and operates, among other
entities, G.H, Bass &Co. stores. Defendants’ webpages says the following about G.H. Bass &
Co.: “Established in 1876 by George Henry Bass of Wilton, Mame, G.H. Bass & Co. began with
a man on a simple mission — ‘to make the very best handerafted shoe.” Since its inception, Bass’s
reputation for quality, comfort and durability have paved the way for defining moments in
American history. As the official aviation boot of the U.S. Army in World War ], to Charles A.
Lindbergh’s choice for the first solo transatlantic flight from NY to Paris, to outfitting pop
culture icons, Bass remains the #1 choice for adventurers and American heroes. Today, Bass
continues George Henry’s simple mission, and remains a truly iconic brand, rich in heritage and
tradition, that embodies classic American style. In the true spirit of our legacy, we continue to
find new ways to combine the classics with the contemporary, proying that a frue original is
always in demand.”

3. As part of its retail operations, Defendants operate several “outlet” style stores
throughout the State of California, as well as the rest of the United States.

4, “Qutlet” stores, also known as “factory outlets”, are commonty understood by the

public to be selling the same merchandise that the manufacturer typically sells at its retail stores,
¥

but at a discount. According to the Business Insider, “[t}he common assumption about outlet
stores is that you’re getting the same goods that are in a regular retail store without the big price

tag.” See hitp:/www. businessinsider.com/outlet-stores-arent-a-good-deal-2014-5.

1
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5. But today, outlet stores typically sell different merchandise than their retail
counterparts, without informing cistomers that this is the case. The Federal Trade Commission
(“FTC”) felt that. the practice needed to be brought to the attention of consumers, issuing a
warning in March 2014 that the merchandise sold at outlet stores can be manufactured
excluéively for the outlet and be of inferior quality than that sold in the manufacturer’s non-
outlet or non-factory store locations. See hitps :/hwww.fic.gov/news-events/press- -
releases/201 4/03/}‘?0-adwce -how-shop-wisely-outlet-malls.

6. While the FTC felt that the need to warn customers about the different, inferior
products sold at ontlet stores or factory stores, companies, such as Defendants, actually take
advantage of the public’s misconceptjoﬁs about outlets and falsely compare their inferior outlet
products to the higher-end retail products sold in their non-outlet or non-factory store locations in
order to induce customers to purchase the “discounted” pi‘odupts.

7. In this case, Defendants have misled consumers by advertising items at
discounted prices (“savings”) by placing placards with its products sold at its California outlet
locations that provide consumers with a price that appears to be a prior price that is stuck-out,
and a substantially lower, “sale” price, is listed. For example, Defendant’s website shaws the

following image:

FRGTORY COTLTT WWOMEN T=EN CTEARANUE LA SIURES

KESTER ESPADRILLE WEDGE
FACTORY QUTLET
$95.00 $34.99

ITEM 2083-3362

COLOR: BLACK

SIZE  SIE CHART

: 6. P 7 . N N 5 ., % .
AT TR PR LA

QTY:

R

— 1L

fBle @& =
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The reality, however, is that the price struck-out on items sold at Defendants’ outlet locations is
not reflective of the price at which the items at the outlet store have been or are being sold. A
Rather, the struck-out price is an inflated price that other, different, and superior products,
bearing the manufacturer’s logo, are being sold for at normal, retail locations. The “comparison”
made by Defendants’ “discount” répresentatiori is truly one of apples to oranges, and any
“savings™ are illusory. | |

8. For example, the above-depicted shoe is not sold by Defendants’ normal, retail
stores, and is only available through outlet stores and the online “Factory Outlet” G.H. Bags &
Co. store. Indeed, no shoe of a similar style is sold by Defendants under the G.H. Bass & Co.
brand, énd especially not for “$95.00”.

9. Defendants’ practice has been specifically addressed by the FTC. In the Code of

Federal Regulations, under Title 16, which addresses Commercial Practices (“Guide Against

Deceptive Pricing™), the FTC specifically states:

One of the most commonly used forms of bargain advertising is to offer a
reduction from the advertiser's own former price for an article. If the former price

* is the actual, bona fide price at which the article was offered to the publicon a
regular basis for a reasonably substantial period of time, it provides a legitimate
basis for the adverlising of a price comparison. Where the former pnice is genuine,
the bargain being advertised is a true one. If, on the other hand, the former price
being advertised is not bona fide but fictitious—for example, where an arlificial,
inflated price was established for the purpose of enabling the subsequent offer of
a large reduction—the “bargain” being advertised is a false one; the purchaser is
not receiving the unusual value he expects. In such a case, the “reduced” price is,
in reality, probably just the seller's regular price..

16 CFR.233.1(a). -
' 10. in addition, under California law, specifically California Business and Professions
Cade Section 17501, entitled “Value determinations; Former price advertisement,” when a
retailer presents purportet_ﬂ reduced “sale” prices and compares U;osc prices to former, “original”
prices, the purported “original” or “market” price must have been the prevailing market retail
price of the article so advertised within the three months next immediately preceding the
publication of the advertised former prices. ‘ |

i1.  The unlawful practice described above, utilized by Defendants and others, has

caused a growing concern for consumer watchdogs. In early 2014, four members of Congress
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wrote a letter to the FT C requesting that it look into claims that merchants may be selling lower
quality items produced specifically for their outlet stores without properly informing consumers -
about the difference between those items and the higher-quality products found in regutar retail
stores. See www. whitehouse. senate.govinews/release/sens-and-rep-to-fic-outlet-stores-may-be-
misleading-consumers. A

12.  Plaintiff herein alleges that under California law, the purported “market price”
advertised in Defendants’ California outlet store locations never existed and/or did no.t constitute
the prevailing mar.ket retail prices for such products within the three months next immediate!y'
preceding the publication of the sales tag, By representing that there is a diffe;ence between the
“sale price” and the struck-out price Defendants are engaging in a false advertising campaign
calculated to lure consumers into purchasing products they believe are significantly discounted.

13.  Through its false and misleading marketing, .advertising and pricing scheme
Defendants have violated, and continue to violate, California law prohibiting advertising goods
for sale as discounted from former prices, when in fact, such representations are false and
misleading. Specifically, Defendants violated, and continue to violate, California’s Business &
Professions Code §§ 17200, et seq (the “UCL”), California’s Business & Professions Code §§
17500, et seq (the “FAL”), and the California Consumers’ Legal Remedies Act, California Civil
Code §§1750, et seq (the “CLRA™).

14. ' Plaintiff brings this action on behalf of herself and other similarly situated
consumers who have purchased one or more itemns at Defendants’ outlet stores that were
deceptively represented as discounted from false prices. Plaintiff, on behalf of herself and all
other similarly situated individuals, seeks to stop the practice of falsely giving the public the
impression that “outlets” are ﬁroviding them with significant savings, when, in fact, the outlets
are really just selling a company’s own “knock-off”, inferior products thét truly are worth fess
than the original, higher-quality retail items offered for sale by the company. By comparing the
low quality products to the price of the higher-quality originals, Defendants are deceiving the
public and are breaking the law. Plaintiff séeks an order certifying this as a class action, giving

restitution and damages to the Class, and enjoining Defendants from continuing with their false-
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information campaign.
IL

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

15.  Defendant AM Retail Group, Inc. has conducted business in the County of San
Francisco, which has caused both obligations and liability of Defendant AM Retail Group, Inc,
to arise in the County of San Francisco.

16.  The amount of controversy exceeds the jurisdictional minimum of this Court.

ITI.
PARTIES
A. Plaintiff Maria Ramos

17, Plaintiff resides in El Dorado County, California. Within the last three years,
Plaintiff, in reliance on Defendants’ false and deceptive advertising, marketing and “discount™
pricing schemes, purchased, among others, a pair of shoes — Bass Kester’s (depicted above) — for
approximately $22.49 at an outlet store in Folsom, California. The shoes were advertised and.
represented by Defendants with a strike-out price of $95.00. That price was discounted and
tepresented to Plaintiff as being a discount according to the bﬁce tag and related signage.
However, this product was never offered for sale at Defendants’ California normal retail stores,
nor was it offered at the inflated price within the ninety (90) aay time period immediately
preceding Plaintiff’s purchase. In fact, the product purchased by Plaintiff was never offered for
sale by Defendants at any of their retail stores; rather, the item was only sold by Defendants at
their California outlet or factory store locations and online location. Thus, Plaintiff was damaged
by her purchase of the product that she believed to have been steeply discounted. |
B. Defendant AM Retail Group, Inc.

18.  Plaintiff is informed and believes, and upon such information and belief alleges,
Deféndaﬁt‘AM Retail Group, Inc,, is ;fi Delaware corporation with its principal executive offices
in Minnesota. .

11
/11
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C. Doe Defendants

19. . Plaintiff does not know t.he true names or capacities of the persons or entities sued
herein as DOES 1—‘100, inclusive, and therefore sues such Défendants by such fictitious names.
Plaintiff is informed and believes, and upon such information and belief alleges, that each of the
DOE Defendants is in some manner 1&gally responsible for the damages suffered by Plaintiff and
the Class members as alleged herein. All Defendants were at all relevant times acting as actual
agénts, conspirators, aiders and abettors who provided substantial assistance with knowledge of
the wrongful conduct, ostensible agents, partners and/or joint venturers and employees of all
6ther Defendants, and tha't all acts alleged herein occurred within the course and scope of said
agency, employment, partnership, joint venture, conspiracy and/or enterprise, and with the
express and/or implied permission, knowledge, consent, authorization and ratification of their
Co-Defendants; however, this allegation is pleaded as an “alternative” theory wherever not doing
so would result in a contradiction with other allegations. Plaintiff will amend this Complaint to
set forth the true names and capacities of these Defendants when théy have been ascertained,
along with appropriate charging allegations, as may be necessary.

IV,
FACTUAL BACKGROUND

20.  Within the last three (3) years, Plaintiff shopped at Defendant’s outlet store in
Folsom, California to purchase clothing and related apparel for herself.

21 Upoil examining a pair of shoes Defendants’ outlet store, Plaintiff viewed a
representation by Defendants that the shoes typically sell for nearly one hundred dellars.

22.  Plaintiff observed signage adjacent to the shoes she was considering purchasing
which represented that the sunglasses were on sale for approximately $30.00 —- a steep discount
and savings. -

!23'. Relying upon Defendants’ misrepresentations and false and deceptive advertising
and believing that she was receiving a significant value, Piaintiff decided to purchase the shoes
and proceeded to the cash register where she did in fact purchase the shoes (note that Plaintiff

received an additional discount for joining Defendants’ loyalty prograin,.bﬁnging her total

6
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purchase price to $22.49).
" 24, Plaintiff would not have purchased the shoes without the misrepresentations made

by Defendants. As a result, Plaintiff has been personally victimized by and suffered economic
injury as a direct result of Defendants’ unlawful, unfair and fraudulent conduct.

25. Defendants know that their comparative price advertising is false, deceptive,
misleading and unlawful under California law.

26.  Defendants fraudulently concealed from and intentionally failed to disclose to
Plaintiff and other members of thé proposed Class the truth about the advertised price and former
prices.

27. At all relevant times, Defendants have been und;ar a duty to Plaintiff and the
proposed Class to disclose the truth about the false discounts.

28.  Plaintiff relied upon Defendants’ artificially inflated pricing and false discounts
when purchasing her shoes at Defendants’ retail stores. Plaintiff would not have made such a
purchase but for Defendants’ representation of a purported discount which caused Plaintiff to
reasonably believe that she was receiving a substantial discount and was making a bargain
purchase.

29. Plaintiff and the Class reasonably and justifiably acted and relied on the
substantial price differences that befendants advertised, and made purchases believing that they
were receiving a substantial discount on an item of greater value _than it actually was. Plaintiff,
like other Class members, was lured in, relied on, and damaged by these pricing schemes that
Defendants carried out.

30.  Defendants intentionally concealed and failed to disclose material facts regarding

the truth about its price advertising in order to entice Plaintiff and the proposed Class to purchase | .

products in their California outlet locations and online,

?

V.

]

CLASS ALLEGATIONS

31 Plaintiff briﬁgs this action on behalf of herself, and all others similarly situated,

pursuant to Section 382 of the California Code of Civil Procedure and secks certification of the

. 7
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following Class and Subclass against Defendants for violations of California state laws:

Class: All individuals in the State of California who purchased any item at one of
Defendants’ outlet or factory stores or through Defendants’ online Factory Outlet
during the four (4) year period preceding the filing of this Class Action
Complaint, and who did not subsequently return the purchased item to Defend ants
(the “Class™).

CLRA Subclass: All individuals in the State of California who purchased any
item at one of Defendants’ outlet or factory stores or through Defendants’ online
Factory Outlet during the three (3) year period preceding the filing of this Class
Action Complaint through the present, and who did not subsequently retumn the
purchased item to Defendants (the “CLRA Subclass™).!

Excluded from the Class are Defendants, as well as its officers, employees, agents or affiliates,
and any judge who presides over this action, as well as all past and present employees, officers
and directors of Defendants. Plaintiff reserves the right to expand, limit, modify, or amend these
class definitions, including the addition of one or more subciasses, in connection with her motioh
for class certification, or at any other time, based upon, infer alia, changing circumstances and/or
new facts obtained during discovery.

32, © The members of the Class are so numerous that joinder of all members is
impracticable. While the exact number of Class members is unknown to Plaintiff at this time,
such ififormation can be ascertained through appropriate discovery and from records maintained
by Defendant and its agents. Specifically, Defendants keep extensive computérized records of
its customers through, inter alia, customer loyalty programs, co-branded credit cards and general
marketing programs. Defendants have one or more databases through which a significant
majority of Class members may be identified and ascertained, and they maintain contact
information, including email and home addresses, through which notice of this action could be
disseminated in accordance with due process requirements.

33.  There is a well-defined conmunity of interest among fhe Class because common
questions of law and fact predominate, Plaintiff’s claims are typical of the members of the Class,

and Plaintiff can fairly and adequately represent the interests of the Class.

/1!

! Plaintiff is a representative and member of both the Class and the CLRA Subolass. Because all members of the
CLRA Subclass are also members of the Class, both will be referred to as the “Class™ unless otherwise noted.
- 8 N
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34,  Common questions of law and fact exist as to all members of the Class and
predominaté over any questions affecting solely individual members of the Class. Among the
questions of law and fact common to the class are, but not lﬁmited to, the following:

a. Whetlher, during the Class Period, Defendants’ used false or
misleading price labels and falsely advertised price discounts on the products sold in their
California retail outlet stores;

b. Whether, during the Class Period, the prices advertised by Defendants
were the prevailing market prices for the respective products during the three month period
preceding the dissemination and/or publication of the advertised price;

C. Whether Defendants engaged in unfair, unlawfut and/or fraudulent
business practices in violation of California Busineés and Professions Code Section 17200;

d. Whether Defendants engaged-in false or misleading advertising in
violation of California Business and Professions Code Section 17500;

c. Whether Defendants engaged in unfair competition or deceptive acts or
practices in violation of the Consumers’ Legal Remedies Act;

f. Whether Plaintiff and Class members are entitled to damages and/or
restitution and the proper measure of that loss; and

g Whether an injunction is necessary to prevent Defendants from continuing
to use false, misleading or illegal price comparisens, discounts, or fabricated prices.

35, Plaintif’f’s'claims are typical of those of the other Class members because
Plaintiff, like every other Class member, was exposed to virtually identical conduct and injury.

36,  Plaintiff will fairly and adequately represent and protect the interests of the Class
in that they have no disabling conflicts of interest that would be antagonistic to those of the other
members of the Class. Plaintiff seeks no relief that is antagonistic or adverse to the members ot:
the Class and the irlﬁ‘ingemeﬁt of the rights and the daniages they have suffered are typical of all
other Class members. Plaintiff has retained competent counsel, experienced in class action
litigation and consumer protection law.

i1
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37.  The nature of this action and the nature of laws available to Plaintiff and the Class |

make the use of the class action device a particularly efficient and approﬁriate procedure to
afford relief to Plaintiff and the Class for the wrongs alleged because:

a. | The individual amounts of damages involved, while not insubstantial, are
such that individual actions or other individual remedies are impfacticable and litigating
individual actions would be too costly;

b. If each Class member was required to file an individual lawsuit, the
Defendants would necessarily gain an unconscionable advantage sinée they would be able to
exploit and overwhelm the limited resources of each individual Class member with vastly
superior financial and legal resowées;

c. The costs of individual suits could unreasonably consume the amounts that
would be recovered,

d. Proof of a common factual pattern that Plaintiff experienced is
representative of that experienced by the Class and will establish the right of each member of the
Class to recover on the cause of action alleged; and |

€. Individual actions would create a risk of inconsistent results and would be
umeécssary and duplicative of this litigation. .

38,  Plaintiff and Class members have all similarly suffered irreparable harm and
damnages as a result of Defendants’ unlawful and wrongful conduct. This action will provide
substantial benefits to Plaintiff, the Class and the public because, absent this.acti'on, Plaintiff and
Class members will continue to suffer losses, thereby allowing Defendants’ violations of law to*
proceed without remedy, and allowing Defendants to retain proceeds of its ill-gotten gains.

39.  All Class members, including Plaintiff, were exposed to one or more of
Defendants’ misrepresentations or omissions of material fact claiming that the represented prices
were in existence. Due to the scope and extent of Defendants’ consistent false price advertising
scheme; disseminated in a years-long campaign to California consumers via a number of
different platforms —in-store displays, print advertisements), and the like — it can be reasonably

inferred that such misrepresentations or omissions of material fact were uniformly made to all

10
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members of the Class. In addition, it can be reasonably presumed that ali Class members,
including, Plaintiff, affirmatively acted in response to the representations contained in
Defendants’ false advertising scheme when purchasing merchandise at Defendant’s outlet stores.

VL

FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION
Viglation Unfair Competition Law
Business and Professions Code § 17200 ef seq.
(On Behalf of the Class Against Defendants)

40.  Plaintiff and the Class incorporate by reference each and every paragraph of this
Class Action Complaint as if fully set forth herein.

41.  The UCL prohibits any business practice that is “unlawful, unfair or fraudulent”,
as well as any “unfair, deceptive, untrue or misleading” advertising.

42. A business act or practice is “unfair” under the UCL if it offends an established
public policy or is immoral, unethical, oppressive, unscrupulous-or substantially injurious to
consumers, and that unfaimess is determined by weighing the reasons, justifications and motives
of the practice against the gravity of the harm to the alleged victims.

43,  Defendants’ actions constitute “unfair” business acts or practices Because, as
alleged above, Defendants engaged in misleading and deceptive price comparison advertising
that represented false prices that were fabricated so that Defendants counld represent phantom
ﬁmkdowns. Defendants’ acts and practices offended an established public policy,r and engaged
in immoral, unethical, oppressive, and unscrupulous activities that are substantially injurious to
consumers.

44.  The harm to Plaintiff and Class members cutweighs the utility of Defendants’
practices. There were reasonably available alternatives to further Defendants’ legitimate
business interests, other than the misleading and deceptive conduct described herein, Thus, -
Defendan}é’ conduct, as alleged herein, is unféir under the UCL.,

45. A business act or p}acticc is “fraudulent” under the UCL ifit is likely to deceive
members of the consuming public.

111
11
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1 46,  Defendants’ acts and practices alleged above have deceived Plaintiff and are

3 [l follows:

NN

One of the most commonly used forms of bargain advertising is to offer a
reduction from the advertiser's own former price for an article. If the former price
is the actual, bona fide price at which the article was offered to the public on a
regular basis for a reasonably substantial period of time, it provides a legitimate
basis for the advertising of a price comparison. Where the former price is genuine,
the bargain being advertised is a true one. If, on the other hand, the former price
being advertised is not bona fide but fictitious—for example, where an artificial,
inflated price was established for the purpose of enabling the subsequent offer of
g4 a large reduction—the “bargain” being advertised is a false one; the purchaser is
not receiving the unusual value he expects. In such a case, the “reduced” price is,
9 in reality, probably just the seller's regular price..

10 || 16 C.F.R. 233.1(a).

~J oo

3 47.  Califomnia law also expressly prohibits false pricing schemes. California Business

12 || and Professions Code Section 17501 entitled “Falue determinations; Former price

13 || advertisement,” states:

14 For the purpose of this article the worth or value of anything advertised is the
prevailing market price, wholesale if the offer is at wholesale, retail if the offer is

15 at retail, at the time of publication of such advertisement in the locality wherein

6 the advertisement is published.
No price shall be advertised as a former price of any advertised thing, unless the

17 alleged former price was the prevailing market price as above defined within '
three months next immediately preceding the publication of the advertisement

18 or unless the date when the alleged former price did prevail is clearly, exactly and

1o conspicuously stated in the advertisement. [Emphasis added.]

20 48.  Plaintiff relied on Defendants’ fraudulent and deceptive representations regarding

21 | the prices it represented and the corresponding “discounts™ for the items that Defendants sell at

22 |itheir retail outlet stores. Plaintiff relied upon these misrepresentations to her detriment, they

23 || were a substantial cause in influencing Plaintiff’s decision to purchase her product, and Plaintiff

24 {| would not have purchased the product but for Defendants’ misrepresentations.

25 | 49.  Thus, Defendants’ conduct, as alleged herein, is “fraudulent” under the UCL.
26 50. A business act or practice is “unlawful” under the UCL if it violates any other law

27 |jorregulation.

28 ||/11
12

2 |llikely to deceive members of the public. 16 C.F.R. 233.1 explains the use of a price discounts as
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51. As detailed in Plaintiff’s Third Cause of Action, California Civil Code Section
1770(a)(9), prohibits a business from “{a}dvertising goods or services with intent not to self them
as advertised,” and subsection (a)(13) prohibits a business from “[m}aking falsc or misleading
statements of fact concerning reasons for, existence of, or amounts of price reductions.”

52.  Defendants’ practices, as set forth herein, are misleading and will continue to
mislead in the future, Consequently, Defendants’ practices constitute an unlawful business
practices within the meaning of the UCL. .

53.  Defendants’ violation of the UCL through their unlawful, unfair and fraudulent
business practices are ongoing and present a continuing threat that members of the i)ublic will be
deceived into purchasing products based on price comparisons of arbitrary and inflated “regular”
prices to “sale” prices. Plaintiff and the class are entitled to preliminary and permanent
injunctive relief ordering Defendants to cease this unfair competition, as well as restitution to
Plaintiff and the Class of all of monies spent associated with the unfair competition, or such

portion of those monies as the Court may find equitable.

VIL

SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION
Violation of the California False Advertising Law,
California Business & Professions Code § 17500, ef seq.
(On Behalf of the Class Against Defendants)

54,  Plaintiff and the Class incorporate by reference each and every paragraph of this -
Class Action Complaint as if fully set forth herein. . |

55.  California Business and Professions Code section 17500 (the “FAL”) provides
that “[i}t is unlawful for any...corporation.,.with intent...to dispose of...personal property...to
induce the public to enter into any obligation relating thereto, to make or disseminate or cause to
be made or disseminated...from this state before the public in any state, in any newspaper or
other publication, or any advertising device, or by public outcry or proclamation, or in any other
manner or means whatever, including over the Internet, any statement...which is untrue or
misleading, and which is-known, or which by the exercise of reasonable care shouldAbe known,

to be untrue or misleading....”

13 -
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56.  The “intent” required by the FAL is the intent to dispose of property, and not the
intent to mislead the public in the disposition of such property. .

57.  As stated above, the FAL provides: “[NJo price shall be advertised as a former
price of any advertised thing, unless the alleged foﬁner prices was the prevailing market
price...within three months next immediately preceding the publiéation of the adveﬁisement or
uniess the date when the alleged former price did prevail is clearly, exactly, and conspicuously
stated in the adyertisement.” Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code § 17501.

58.  Defendants’ advertising of discounted prices based upon false price as to their
outlet store products and online Factory Outlet products were false and misleading
misrepresAe‘ntations as such purported prices were never the true prGVailiné prices for the goods
sold by Defendants at its California outlet locations. Therefore, this advertising was, and is, an
unfair, untrue and misleading practice. This deceptive marketing practice gave consumers the
false impression that the products were regularly sold on the market for a substantially higher
price than they actually were and were worth more than they actually were.

59, Defendants misted consumers by making untrue and misleading statements and
failing to disclose what is required as stated in California Business and Professions Code Section
17500 et seq., as alleged herein,

60.  Asa direct and proximate result of Defendants’ misleading and faise
advertisements, Plaintiff has suffered injury in fact and has lost money. As such, Plaintitf
requests that this Court order Defendants to restore to Plaintiff and all members of the Class all
monies Defendants wrongfully received, and to enjoin Defendants from continuing these unfair
pfactices in violation of the FAL in the future, Otherwise, Plaintiff, Class members and the
broader general public will be irreparably harmed and/or denied.an effective and complete
remedy.

117 _ o
111
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THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION .
Violation of the Consumers Legal Remedies Act (“CLRA™)
California Cijvil Code § 1750, ¢t seq.
(On Behalf of the CLRA Subclass Against Defendants)

61.  Plaintiffand the CLRA Subclass incorporate by reference each and every
preceding paragraph of this Class Action Complaint as if fully set forth herein.

62.  This cause of action is brought pursuant to the Consumers Legal Remedies Act
(“CLRA”), codified in California Civil Code Section 1750, ef seq. Plaiﬁtiff and each member of
the proposed CLRA Subclass are “consumers” as defined by California Civil Code § 1761(d).

63.  Defendants’ sale of the products at its factory outlet stores to Plaintiff and the
Class were “transactions” within the meaning of California Civil Code § 1761(e).

64.  The products purchased by Plaintiff and the Class are “goods™ within the meaning
of California Civil Code § 1761(a).

65.  Defendants violated, and continue to violate, the CLRA by engaging in the
following practices proscribed by California Civil Code § 1770(a) in transactions with Plaintiff
and the CLRA Subclass \w;'hich were intended to result in, and did result in, the sale products:

a. Advertised goods or services with intent not to sell them as advertised

(Cal. Civ. Code Section 1770(a)(9)); and

b. Making false or misleading statements of fact conceming reasons for,
existence of, or amounts of price reductions {Cal. Civ. Code Section 1770(a)(13)).

66.  Pursvant to Section 1782(a) of the CLRA, on May 18, 2016, Plaintiff’s counsel
notified Defendants in writing by certified mail of the particular violations of Section 1770 of the
CLRA and demanded that it rectify the problems associated with the actions detailed above and
give notice to all affected consumers of Defendants’ intent to act. 1f Defendants fail to respond—
to Plaintiff’s letter or agree to rectify the problems associatP_,d with the actions detail_ed above and
give notice to all affected consumers within 30 days of the datg’of written notice, as proscribed
by Section 1782, Plaintiff will move to amend her Complaint to pursue claims for actual,
punitive and statutory damages, as appropriate against Defendants. As to this cause of action, at

this time, Plaintiff seeks only injunctive relief.

15
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67.  Defendants’ actions in violating the CLRA were done with oppression, fraud, or
malice.
IX.
PRAYER FOR RELIEF
Wherefore, Plaintiff, on behalf of herself and on behalf of the other members of the Class
and CLRA Subclass, requests that this Court award relief against Défendants as follows:
a. An order crertifying the Class and CLRA Subclass and designating
Plaintiff as the Class Representative and her counsel as Class Counsel;
b. Awarding Plaintiff and the proposed CLRA Subclass damages;
c. Awarding restitution of all monies that Defendants’ obtained from
Plaintiff and the Class that may have resuited from its untawful, unfair and fraudulent business
practices described herein;
d. Awarding declaratory and injunctive relief as permitted by law or equity,
including: (i) enjoining Defendants from continuing the unlawful practices as set forth herein;
and (ii) directing Defendants to identify, with Court supervision, victims of their misconduct and

pay them all money they are required to pay;

e. Order Defendants to engage in a corrective advertising campaign;
f. Awarding punitive damages;
E. Awarding attorneys’ fees and costs pursuant to the CLRA (Cal. Civ. Code

§ 1780(e)) and Cal. Civ. Proc. Code § 1021.5; and
h. For such other and further relief as the Court may deem necessary or
appropriate. _
DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL

Plaintiff hereby demands a jury trial for all of the claims so triable.

Dated: May 26, 2016 STONEBARGER LAW, APC

. KEARNE%EFIELD, LLP
"
By: /

Richard D. Lambert

Attorneys for the Plaintiff and the Class
16
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Gene J. Stonebarger, State Bar No. 209461
Richard D. Lambert, State Bar No. 251148
STONEBARGER LAW

A Professional Corporation

75 Iron Point Circle, Ste. 145

Folsom, CA 95630

Telephone (916) 235-7140

Facsimile (916) 235-7141

Thomas A. Kearney, State Bar No. 90045
Prescott W. Littlefield, State Bar No. 259049
KEARNEY LITTLEFIELD LLP

3436 N. Verdugo Rd, Suite 230

Glendale CA 91208

Telephone (213) 473-1900

Facsimile (213)473-1919

Attorneys for Plaintiff Maria Ramos and the Class
SUPERIOR COURT OF CALIFORNIA
COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO

066 46-552324

DECLARATION OF RICHARD D.
LAMBERT IN SUPPORT OF VENUE ~
PURSUANT TO CALIFORNIA CIVIL
CODE SECTION 1780(d)

MARIA RAMOS, on behalf of herself and all
others similarly situated,

Plaintift,
VS,

AM Retail Group, In¢c., a DELAWARE
Corporation; and DOES 1-100, inclusive,

Defendants.

DECLARATION OF RICHARD D. LAMBERT IN SUPPORT OF YENUE
PURSUANT TO CALIFORNIA CIVIL CODE SECTION 1780(d)
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I, RICHARD D. LAMBERT, state and declare as follows:

I [ am counsel to the Plaintiff m the above-entitled action. 1am a competent adult
o‘ver .eighteen years of age and I have personal knowledge of the following facts for which I
could and would competently testify to ‘under oath and in open court if called to do so.

2. AM Retail Group, Inc. doés business in the County of San Francisco. It has
multiple retail stores in the city of San Francisco, California. |

3. I am making this declaration pursuant to California Civil Cade section 1780(d), to
establish that AM Retail Group, Inc. does business in the County of San Francisco.

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California and the laws
of the United States of America that the foregoing is true and correct and that this Declaration

was executed on May 27, 2016 in Folsom, Califomnia.

S 7 ——

Richard D. Lambert

2

DECLARATION OF RICHARD D, LAMBERT IN SUPPORT OF VENUE
PURSUANT TO CALIFORNIA CIVIL CODE SECTION 1780(d)
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Gene J. Stonebarger, State Bar No. 209461
Richard D. Lambert, State Bar No. 251148
STONEBARGER LAW

A Professional Corporation

75 [ron Point Circle, Ste. 145

Folsom, CA 95630

Telephone (916) 235-7140

Facsimile (916) 235-7141

Thomas A. Kearney, State Bar No. 90045
Prescott W. Littlefield, State Bar No. 259049
KEARNEY LITTLEFIELD LLP

3436 N. Verdugo Rd, Suite 230

Glendale CA 91208

Telephone (213) 473-1900

Facsimile (213)473-1919

Atl‘om—e}'s Jor Plaintiff Maria Ramos and the Class

SUPERIOR COURT OF CALIFORNIA

COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO

MARIA RAMOS, on behalf of herself and all )
others similarly situated, )
Plaintiff, g

)

vs, )

AM Retail Group, Inc., a DELAWARE ;
Corporation; and DOES 1-100, inclusive, )
 Defendants. %

),

)

)

)

CASENO. CGC 16-552324
APPLICATION FOR APPROVAL OF

COMPLEX LITIGATION
DESIGNATION

Complaint Filed: June 1, 2016

APPLICATION FOR APfROVAL OF COMPLEX LITIGATION DESIGNATION
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Plaintiff Maﬁa Ramos (“Plaintiff”), on behalf of herself and ail others similarly situated,
submits this Application for Approval of Complex Litigation Designhation (“Application”) so that
the Court may issue an Order Desigﬁat'mg this Class Action as “Complex” pursuant to the
California Rule of Court 3.400 ef seq.

1. INTRODUCTION

_This action is a.consumer Class Action, wherein Plaintiff alleges that Defendant, AM
Retail Group, Inc. (“Defendant”) has misled consumers by advertising items at discounted prices
(“savings™) by representing on products sold at its California outlet locations with an alleged
“retail price” and then selling the items at a price lower than the represented “retail price.”
Plaintiff alleges the represented “retail price” on items sold at Defendants’ outlet locations is not
reflective of the price at which the item at the outlet store has been, or is being, sold. Thus,
Plaintiff alleges Defendant has engaged in, and continues to engage in, a practice of violating
Califoia’s Unfair Competition Laws; California’s False Advertising Laws; and the California

Consumer Legal Remedies Act.

I1. THIS ACTION MEETS THE CRITERIA FOR THE COMPLEX CASE
DESIGNATION :

A “Complex Case” is an action that requires exceptional judicial management to avoid
placing unnecessary burdens on the court or the litigants and to e:i(pedite'the case, keep costs
reasonable, and promote effective decision-making by the court, the parties and counsel. Cal.R. |
Ct. 3.400. '

Califomia Rule of Court 3.400(b) states that, in deciding whether an action is a c;)mplex
case, the court shal} consider, among other things, whether the action is likely to if}vo]ve:
| (1) Numerous pretrial motions raising difficult or novel legal issues that will be

time-consuming to resolve;

(2 Management of a large number of witnesses or a substantial amount of
documgntary evidence; '

(3) Management of a large number of separately represented parties;

Iy

. : 1
APPLICATION FOR APPROVAL OF COMPLEX LITIGATION DESIGNATION
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(4) Coordination with related actions pending in one or more courts in other
counties, states, or countries, or in a federal court; or
(5) Substantial post-judgment judicial supervision.

(A)  This Caseis Complex Because Numerous Pretrial Motions Raising Difficult
Or Novel Legal Issues Will Be Made By Each Party and Will Be Time
Consuming To Resolve

Because this action is styled as a Class Aét:‘on, it will necessarily involve a complex and
detailed motion for class certification by Plaintiff - and most likely opposed by Defendant.
Should the case be resolved through a settlement either before class certification or after, the
parties will necessarily bring motions‘for preliminary approval of a settlement and a motion for
final approval of any settlement. Additionally, it is likely that dispositive motions will be filed
by the parties regarding certain claims or defenses.

Accordingly, the numerous pretrial motions involving novel or difficult legal issues

warrant the Complex Case designation.

(B) Management of a Large Number of Witnesses or 4 Substantial Amount of
Documentary Evidence

In this action, Plaintiff- seeks to represent a class of California consumers likely
numbering in the hundreds of thousands. Plaintiff will necessarily seek the production of a
substantial amount of documentary evidence (e.g., transaction records, pricing records, policy
manuals, software manuals, etc.) to establish the allegations in the Complaint and to support the
motion for class certification. Accordingly, it is believed that Plaintiff will gather a substantial
amount of evidence that will be used in the motion for class cert‘iﬁcation, in any potential class
settlement, and/or trial of this action.

(O Substauvtial Post-Judgment Judiecial Supervision

If Plaintiff prevails at trial, or if the case is resolved through settlement, the Court may be
required to engége in post-judgment supervision to assure that Cléss benefits have been properly
provided to the Class and that any unpaid residuals be distributed to the Class or to non-profit
organizations, as the Court is required to do pursuant to Code of éivil Procedure Section 384.
7

- 2- -
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III. THIS ACTION IS ALREADY PROVISIONALLY DESIGNATED -
AS A COMPLEX CASE

California Rule of Court 3.400(c) states that an action is provisidnaliy a “complex case”
ifit involves claims involving Class Actions. Cal. R. Ct. 3.400(c)(6). While the provisional
designation is not mandatory, it appears that the only condition in which a class action would not
be considered “compiex” is if the court has significant experience in resolving like claims
involving similar facts and the management of those claims has become rout_ine._ Cal. R. Ct.
3.400(d}). Accordingly, Plaintiff merely asks this Court to modify the provisional complex
designation to a permanent designation.

IV. CONCLUSION

Based upon the foregoing, Plaintiff respectfully requests that the Court designate the
above-entitled consumer Class Action as “Complex™ pursuant to Rule 3.400 of the Califomia

Rules of Court.

Dated: June 10, 2016 STONEBARGER LAW, APC
KEARNEY LITTLEFIELD, LLP

By: ‘%// (\

Richard D. Lambert

Attorneys for the Plaintiff and the Class

3 .
APPLICATION FOR APPROVAL OF COMPLEX LITIGATION DESIGNATION
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Superior Court of California
County of San Francisco

Expedited Jury Trial Information Sheet

What is an expedited jury trial?

An expedited jury irial is a trial that is much
fasfer and has a smaller jury than a {raditional

jury trial. An expedited jury trial differs from a

regular jury trial in several ways:

« The trial will be shorter. Each side has 3
hours to make opening statements,
present witnesses and evidence, and
make closing statements.

+ The jury will be smaller, There will be 8
jurors instead of 12.

+ Choosing the jury will be faster. The
parties will exercise fewer preemptory
challenges.

» Parties will waive some post trial motions
and rights to appeal. Appeals are
allowed only if there is: (1) Misconduct of
the judicial officer that materially affected
substantiai rights of a parly; {2) Jury
misconduct; or {3) Corruption or fraud or
some other bad act that prevented a fair
trial.

In addition, parnlies may not ask the judge
to set the jury verdict aside, except on
those same grounds.

‘Does the jury have to reach a unanimous
decision?

No. Just as in a traditional civil jury trial, only
three-quarters of the jury must agree in order
to reach a decision in an expedited jury trial.
With 8 people on the jury, that means that at
least B of the jurors must agree on the verdict
in an expedited jury trial.

Is the dec:s:on of the jury binding on the
parties?

Generally, yes. A verdict from a jury in an
expedited jury trial is like a verdict in a
traditional jury trial. However, parties who take
part in expedited jury trials are allowed fo
make an agreement before the fiial that
guarantees that the defendant will pay a
cerfain amount to the plaintiff even if the jury
decides on a lower payment or no payment.
That agreement may- also impose a cap, or
maximum, on the highest amount that a
defendant has to pay, even if the jury decides
on a higher amount. These agreements are
commonly known as “high/flow agreements.”

How do | qualify for an expedited jury triaf?

The process can be used in any civil case. To
have an expediled jury trial, both sides must
want one. Each side must agree that it will use
only three hours to put on its case and agree
to the other rules described above. This
agreement must be put in writing in a
Stipulation and submitted along with a
Proposed Consent Order Granting an
Expedited Jury Trial, which.is given to the
court for approval. The courl will usually agree
to the Consent Order.

How do ! request an expedited jury trial?

To have an expedited jury trial, both sides

must submit a Stipulation and Proposed
Consent Order for Expedited Jury Trial to the
court for approval. This may happen at three
stages of litigation:

1) At Filing and Prior to Setting of a Trial

Date: Parties may submit a Stipulation to
Expedited Jury Trial to Dept. 610 using the
attached short form {see below). Parties must

‘nformation adapted From judiclal Council’s Expedited jury Trial Information Sheet ET-01 0-INFO, New January 1, 2011

Page 1 of 2
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also submit a Proposed Consent Crder for
Expedited Jury Trial to Dept. 610.

2) After a Trial Date has been Set: Parlies
submit a Stipulation and Proposed Consent
Order for Expedited Jury Trial directly to Dept.
206 at least 30 days prior to the assigned frial
date.

3) After Trial Assignment: A Proposed
Consent Order for Expedited Jury Trial may
be submitted immediately to the assigned trial
department nol less than 30 days prior {o the
assigned trial date.

Also, afler a case is assigned o a parlicutar
judge for trial, the parties may ask the trial
judge o have an Expedited Jury Tvial, and the
judge may permit the parlies to then sign the
appropriate Stipulation and Proposed Consent
Order for Expedited Jury Trial.

Can | change my mind after agreeing to an
expedited jury frial?

No, unless the other side or the court agrees.
Once you and the other side have agreed to
take parl in an expedited jury trial the
agreement is binding on both sides,

Expedited Jury Trial Request i
Please submit a copy of this request to Dept. 610..

Case No.

Case Name:

The parties would like this action to be submitted to an Expedited Jury Trial.

The parties shall submit a consent order {o'the Courl on or by

MName of Parly

Name of Pady/Altomey

Signature of Pady

Dated:

Name of Parly N

Name of ParyfAltormey

Signaiure of Parly

Daled:

Name of Parly

Namae of Parly/Atiorney

Signature of Parly

Dated:

Please note: a [Proposed] Consent Order for Expedited Jury Trial is still reqUIred in addmon io

this stiputation form.

You can find the law and rules governing expedited jury trials in Code of Civil Procedure sections 630.01-
630.12 and in rules 3.1545-3.1552 of the California Rules of Court. You can find these al any county law library
or online. The stalutes are online at wiwik feginfo.ca.gowcalaw. himl. The rules AIC at Wi COuriy.cm, guwmie.f

“information adapted from Judicial Council’s Exgedited Jury Trial liformation Shec.t EIT-010-INFO, New Janvary 1, 201!
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CM-110

AITGRHEY OR PARTY WITHOUT ATTORNEY {(Nome. Stite Barrumber. and addrass) © FORCQURT USE ONLY

TELEPHONE MO FA HO {Opfonal:
E-MAL ADDRESS {Clinaly
_ ATTCRNEY FOR (Nams}.
-SUPERIOR COURT OF CALIFORNIA, COUNTY OF -
STREET ACDRESS:
AAN G ADDRESS:
CITY ANC 2IP CODE:
BRAMNCH NAME:*

PLAINTIFFIPETITIONER:

1 DEFENDANT/RESPONOENT:
CASE MANAGEMENT STATEMENT : CASE KUMBZR:
(Checkona): [__] UNLIMITED CASE (] L#MITED CASE ‘
(Amount demanded (Amount demanded is $25,000
exceeds $25,000) or iess}

A CASE MANAGEMENT CONFERENCE is scheduled as follows:
Date: Time: Depti.- Div.. Room:
Address of courl (if different from the address abovs):

[ Notice of intent to Appear by Telephone, by (name):

INSTRUCTIONS: All applicable boxes must he checked, and the specified information must be providad.

1. Party or parties (answer one):

a. [_1 This statement s submitted by party (mame):
b. [_] This statement is submitied jointly by pariies (names):

2. Complaint and cross-compiaint fto bs answered by p!amt:ffs and cross-complainants onfy)
a. The complaint was filed on (dafe}:
b. 1 The cross-complaint, if any, was filed on (date):

3. Service {fo be answered by plainliffs and cross-complainanis only) .
[ ] Al parties named in the complaint and cross-camplaint have been served, have appeared, or have baen dismissed.
b [_] The following parties named in the cemplaint ar cross-complaint
{1 "] have not been served (specify names and explain why not):

2y | have been served but have not appeared and have not been dismissed (specify names):

3 | have had a default entered against them (specify names).

¢. [ The following addilional parties may be added (specily namas, nalure of involvement in case, and date by which
they may be served): )

-4, Description of case .
a. Typeofcasein [C ] complaint [ ] cross-comptaint  (Describe, including causes of aclion):

Paga 1 oIS
Form Adogled lor \iandahory Usa ) GASE MANAGEMENT STATEMENT . Ca. ez o Gowt.

CH-110{Rev iz 4, 2011} : WHAY CouTS.0d Jov
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CM-110

PLAINTIFFIPETITIONER: CASE MUMBER:
DEFENDANT/RESPONDENT:

4. b. Provide a brief statement of the case, including any damages. (if personal Infury damages are sought, specify the injury and
damages claimed, including medical expenses lo date findicate source and amount], astimalted future medical expenses, lost
eamings o dale, and estimated future Jost eamings. If equitabla refief is sought, describe the nature of the relief.)

[T (i rmore space is needed, check Ihis box and attach & page designaled as Atlachment 4b.)
5. Jury or honjury tslai

The parly or parties request . (] ajurytial [l anonjury trial.  (if more than one party, provide the name of each parly
requesting a jury trial):

6. Trial date
a. [ The wial has been set for (dats):
b. [ No irial date has been sel. This case will be ready for lriat within 12 months of the date of the filing of the complaint (if
nol, explai):

c. Dales on which parties or attorneys will not be available for trial {spacify dates and explain reasoné for unavailability):

7. Estimated length of trial
The party or parlies eslimate that the tial will lake (check one):
a. I~ days {specify numbsr):
b. [ ] hours {short causes) (spscify):

8. Trial representation flo be answered for each parly) ] : i
The paity or parlies will be reprasented attrial [ ] by the attorney or party listed in the caption [ 1 by the following:
a. Altorney:

b.  Finm:

¢. Addrass;

d. Telephone numnber: f. Fax numbers:

e. E-mail address: g. Parly represented:

[T1 Additional representation Is described in Attachment 8.

9. *Preference
[] This case is entitled to preference (specily code section):

10. Altemative dispute resofution {ADR})

a. ADR information packags. Please note that different ADR processes are available in different couris and communities; read
the ADR information package provided by the court under rule 3.221 for information about the processes available through the
court and cornmunily programs in this case. -

{1} For parties represented by counsel: Counsel [ 1 has "] hasnat provided the ADR information package identified
in rule 3.221 to the client and reviewed ADR optiens with the client,

(2) For self-represanted parties: Parly (] has [___] has not reviewed the ADR informalion package identified in rule 3,221,

b. Referral to Judiclat arbitratton or clvil action mediation (if available},

(1) {1 This matteris éulﬂeci to mandalory judicial arbitration under Coda of Civil Procedure section 1141.11 or to civil action
medialionl under Code of Civil Procedure section 1775.3 because the amount in conlroversy does nol exceed the
statutory limit. '

2) [C] Piaintiff efects to refer this case {o judicial arbitration and agrees to limit recovery to the amount specified in Code of
Civil Procedure section 1141.11.

{3) [_] This case is exempt from judicial arbilration under rule 3.811 of the Califomia Rutes of Courlor from civil aclion
mediation under Code of Civil Procedure section 1775 et seq, {specify exemption):

ClaTia ey iy 3. 2011) ' CASE MANAGEMENT STATEMENT Page 2013
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PLAINTIFF/PETITIONER:
DEFENDANT/RESPONDENT:

CASE HUMEER:

10. ¢ Indicate the ADR process or processes that the parly or parlies are willing lo participate in, have agreed to parlicipate in, or
have already particlpated In (cfieck alf fhat apply end provide the specified information):

The parly or parlies completing
this form are willing to
participate in lhe following ADR
pracesses fcheck all that apply):

If the parly ar parties completing this form in the case have agreed fo
participate in or have already completed an ADR process or processes,
indicate the status of the processes (altach a copy of the partfes' ADR
stipuation):

(1) Mediation

Mediation session not yet scheduled
Mediation session scheduled for (data):
Agreed to complete medialion by (dafe):

Mediation completed on {date);

{2) Setitlement
conference

Setllement conference not yet scheduled
Setllement conference scheduled for (date):
Agreed to complete settlement conference by (date):

Seftlement conference completed on {dale):

(3) Neufral evaluation

Neutrat evalyalion not yet scheduled
Neulral evg!uation scheduled for (date):
Agreed to complete neuiral evaluation by (date):

Meutral evaluation completed on {dafe).

{4} Nonbinding judicial
arbitration

Judicial arbitration not yat scheduled
Judicial arbitration scheduled for {dale):
Agreed to complete judicial arbilralion by (dale):

Judicial arbitration completed on (date):

(5) Binding private
arbitration

. Private arbitration not yet scheduled

Private arbitration scheduled for {dals):
Agreed to complete private arbitration by (dale):

Private arbitration completed on {dats):

(6) Other {specify).

0000|0000!/0000|0000({0000(0000

ADR sesslon not yel scheduled

ADR session schedvled for (dare):

‘Agreed o complele ADR session by (date):

ADR completed on {(dats):

CHE [Rev Jdy 1. 2011]
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CM-1

PLAINTIFFIPETITIONER (-ASE HLBER:

DEFENDANT/RESPONDENT:

11. Insurance
-a. [ Insurance carrier, if any, for party filing this statement (name):
b. Reservationofrightss [ ] Yes [ Mo
¢. [ Coverage issues will significanly affect resolution of this case (explain):

12. Jurisdiction
Indicate any matters that may affect the courl's jurisdiction or processing of this ¢ase and describe the status.

[ Bankrmuptey ] Other (specify}:

Status:

13. Related cases, consolidation, and coordination
a. [__] There are companion, underlying, or refated cases,

{1} Name of case.
{2) Name of court:
{3) Case number:
(4) Status:

[ Additienat cases are described in Attachment 13a.
b, ] Amotionto [ consolidate [ ] coordinate  will be fled by (name parly):

14. Bifurcation

CJ The parly or parties intend lo file a motion for an order b-irurcating, sevaring. or coordinaling the following issues or causes of
action {specify moving party, lype of mo(fon, and reasons}:

15. Other motions .
(] The party or parlies expect to file the following motions before tial {specify moving party, lype of motion, and issuss).

16. Discovery
a. ["_7] The party or parties have completed all discovery,
t. [__] The following discovery will be compleled by the date specified (describe alf anticipated discovery):
Party Descriolion . . Date

c. [_] The following discovery issues, including issues regarding the discovery of electronically stored information, are
anticipated (specify):

CHATDRov ey 1. 201} CASE MANAGEMENT STATEMENT Pegr 4ot
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_ CM-110
PLAINTIFF/PETITIONER: . CASE HUMZER: :

DEFENQANT/RESPONDENT:

17. Economic litigation

a. [_] This is a limited civil case (i.e., the amaunt demanded is $25,000 or less) and the aconomic fitigation procedures in Code
of Civil Procedure sections 90 98 will apply to this case.

b [_] This is a limited civil case and a motion to withdraw the case from the econgmic litigation procedures or for additional
discovery will be lited (if checked, expiain specifically why aconormic litigation proceduras relaling to discovery or irial
should nal apply to this case):

18. Otherlissues

[} The party or parties request that the followmg additional matters be considered or detemined at the case management
conference {spacify):

19. Meet and confer

a. [__] The party or parties have met and conferred with all parties on all subjects required by rule 3.724 of the California Rules
of Court {if not, explain):

b. After meeting and conferring as required by rufe 3.724 of the California Rules of Court, the parties agree on {he following
(specify): -

20, Total nilmber of pages attached (if any}):

i am completely familiar with this case and will be fully prepared to discuss the status of disooveryvand alternative dispute resolulion,
as well 85 other issues raised by this stalement, and wiii possess the authority te enter into stipulations on these issues al the time of
the case management conference, inctuding the wiritten authority of the party where required.

Date; *

b

{TYPE GR PRINT NAME} {SIGHATURE GF PARTY DR ATTORNEY)

b

(TYPE OR PRINT NANE) . [SIGHATURE GF PARTY R ATTORHEY)
{T7] Adcditional signalures are attached.

CAk 118 (e dy 1. 201) CASE MANAGEMENT STATEMENT ' Page $ofs
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TATTORNEY OR PARTY WITHOUT ATTORNEY (Name and 2ddress) FOR COURTY USE ONLY

TELEPHONE NO:
ATTORNEY FOR {Neme):

SUPERIQOR COURT OF CALIFORNIA, COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO
400 Edchliister Slieet -
San Franclsco, CA 84102.4514

PLAINTIFF/PETITIONER:

DEFENDANT/RESPONDENT:

CASE NUMBER:
STIPULATION TO ALTERNATIVE DISPUTE RESOLUTION {ADR}
DEPARTMENT 610

1) The parties hereby stipulate that this action shaif be submitted to the following ADR process:

0

a

2} The parties agree that the ADR Process shall be campleted by (date):

Early Settlement Program of the Bar Association of San Francisco {BASF) - Pre-screened experienced atlorneys provide
a minimum of 2 hours of settlement conference lime for a BASF administrative fee of $295 per parly, Waivers are available to
those who qualify. BASF handles nolification to all paries, conflict checks with the panelists, and full case

management. www.sfbar.org/esp

Mediation Services of BASF - Experienced professional mediators, screened and approved, provide one hour of preparalion
and the first iwo hours of mediation time for a BASF administeative fee of $295 per parly. Medlation time beyond that Is charged
at the mediator's hourly rate. Waivers of the administrative fee are available to those who qualify, BASF assists parlies with
mediator selection, conflicts checks and full case management. www.sfbar.org/mediation

Private Mediation - Mediators and ADR provider organizalions charge by the hour or by the day, current market rates. ADR
organizations may also charge an adrministrative fee. Parlies may find experienced mediators and organizations on the Intemet.

Judicial Arbitration - Non-binding arbitration is available to cases in which the amount in controversy is $50,000 or [ess and no
aquitable refief is sought. The courl appoints a pre-screened arbitrator who will issue an award. There is no fee for this
program. www.s{superiorcourt.org ' -

Judiciat Mediation - The Judicial Mediation program offers mediation in civil fitigation with a San Francisco Superior Courl
judge familiar with the area of the law that is the subject of the controversy. There is no fee for this program.
vivrw.sfsuperiorcourt.org :

Judge Requested {see list of Judges currently participating in the program}:
Date range requested for Judicial Mediation ¢from the fiting of stipulation to Judicial Mediation):
{130-90days [190-120days [ Other {please specify)

Qther ADR process (describe)

'3} Plaintiffis) and Defendant(.s} further agree as follows:

Name of Padly Stipulating ’ : Name of Parly Stipulating

Name of Parly or Attorney Executing Stipulation

_ Name of Parly or Attorney Executing Stipulation

Signature of Party or Allorney Signature of Parly or Atterney

[ Plaintifi {T] Defendant ] Cross-defendant

Dated:

{71 Plaintiff {T] Defendant (] Cross-defendant

Dated:

{71 Additional signature(s) attached

ADR-2 0315 STIPULATION TO ALTERNATIVE DISPUTE RESOLUTION
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Superior Court of California
County of San Francisco

HON. JOHN K. STEWART JENIFFER B. ALCANTARA

PRESIDING JUDGE Judicial Mediation Program T RO AOHISIRATOR

The Judicial Mediation program offers mediation in civil litigation with a San
Francisco Superior Cowt judge familiar with the area of the law that is the subject of the -
controversy. Cases that will be considered for participation in the program include, but are
not limited to personal injury, professional malpractice, construction, employment, insurance
coverage disputes, mass torts and complex commercial litigation. Judicial Mediation offers
civil litigants the opportunity to engage in carly mediation of a case shortly after filing the
complaint in an effort to resolve the matter before substantial funds are expended. This
program may also be utilized at anytime throughout the litigation process. The panel of
judges currently participating in the program in¢tudes:

The Honorable Michael 1. Begert The Honorable Harold E. Kahn

The Honorable Suzanne R. Bolanos The Honorable Curtis E.A, Karnow
The Honorable Angela Bradstreet . The Honorable Charlene P. Kiesselbach
The Honorable Andrew Y.S. Cheng The Honorable James Robertson, 11
The Honorable Samuel K. Feng The Honorable Richard B, Ulmer, Jr.
The Honorable Charles F. Haines - The Honorable Mary E. Wiss

Partics interested in Judicial Mediation should file a Stipulation to Judicial Mediation
indicating a joint request for inclusion in the program and deliver a courtesy copy to
Department 610. A preference for a specific judge may be indicated on the request, and
although not guaranteed, every cftort will be made to fulfill the parties’ choice. Please allow
at least 30 days from the filing of the form to receive the notice of assignment. The court’s
Alternative Dispute Resolution Administrator will facilitate assxgnment of cases that qualify
for the program.

Note: Space and availability is limited. Submission of a stipulation to Judicial Mediation ~
does not guarantee inclusion in the program. You will receive written not;ﬁcal;on from the
court as to the outcome of your application.

‘Alternative Dispute Resolution
400 McA lister Street, Rooin 103, San Francisco, CA 94102
(415) 551-3869

03/2015 (ja)
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Superior Court of California, County of San Francisco

Alternative Dispute Resolution
Program Information Package.

The plaintiff must serve a copy of the ADR information package
_on aach defendant atong with the complaint. (CRC 3 221(c)}

WHAT 15 ADR?

Alternative Dispute Resolulion (ADR) is the term used to describe the various options available
for settling a dispute without a trial. There are many different ADR processes, the most common
forms of which are mediation, arbitration and setflement conferences. In ADR, trained, impartlal

people decide disputes or help parties decide disputes themselves. They can hefp parties

resoive disputes without having to go to court.

WHY CHOOSE ADR? '

"It is the policy of the Superior Court that every noncriminal, nonjuvenile case participate either
in an early setttement conference, mediation, arbitration, early neutral evaluation or some other
alternative dispute resolfution process prior to trial." {Local Rule 4)

ADR can have a number of advantages over traditional litigation:

+ ADR can save time. A dispute often can be resolved in a matter of months, even
weeks, through ADR, while a lawsuit can take years. .

s ADR can save money, including court costs, attorney fees, and expert fees. -

+ ADR encourages participation. The parties may have more opportunities to tell their
story than in court and may have more control over the outcome of the case.

+ ADR is more satisfying. For all the ahove reasons, many people participating in
ADR have reported a high degree of satisfaction.

HOW DO | PARTICIPATE IN ADR? .
Litigants may eléct to participate in ADR at any point in a case. General civil cases may
voluntarily enter into the court’s ADR programs by any of the following means;
+ Filing a Stipuiation to. ADR: Complete and file the Stipulation form (attached to this
packet)
« Indicating your ADR preference on the Case Management Statement (also attached to
this packet); or
« Contacting the court's ADR office (see betow) or the Bar Association of San
Francisco's ADR Services at 415-782-8805 or www.sfbar org/adr for more information.

For more information ahout ADR programé or dispute resolution alternatives, contact:

Superior Court Alternative Dispute Resolution
400 McAliister Street, Room, 103, San Francisco, CA 94102
415-551-3869

*

Or, visit the court ADR wébsr’te at www. sfsuperiorcourt.ory

ADR- 1 03/15 : (ja} Page1
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The San Francisco Superior Court offers different types of ADR processes for general civil
- matters; each ADR program is described in the subsections below:

1} SETTLEMENT CONFERENCES

The goal of settlement conferences is to provide'participants an opporiunity to reach a mutually
acceptable settlement that resolves all or part of a dispute early in the litigation process.

{A) THE BAR ASSOCIATION OF SAN FRANCISCO {BASF) EARLY SETTLEMENT
PROGRAM (ESP): ESP remains as one of the Court's ADR programs (see Local Ruie 4, 3) but
parties must select the program ~ the Court no fonger will order parties inta ESP,

Oparation: Panels of pre-screened altorneys (one plaintiff, one defense counsel} each
with at least 10 years' trial experience provide a minimum of two hours of settlement conference
time, mcludlng evaluation of strengths and weakness of a case and potential case value. On
occasion, a panslist with extenslve experience in both plaintiff and defense roles serves as a
sole panelist. BASF handles notification to all parties, conflict checks with the panelists, and full
case management. The success rate for the program is 78% and the satisfaction rate is 97%.
Full procedures are at: www,sfbar. org/esp.

Cost: BASF charges an administrative fee of $295 per party with a cap of $590 for
parties represented by the same counsel. Waivers are available to those who qualify. For more
information, calf Marilyn King at 415-782-8905, email adr@sfoar.org or see enclosed brochure.

{B) MANDATORY SETTLEMENT CONFERENCES: Parties may elect to apply to the
Presiding Judge's department for a specially-set mandatory seitlement conference. See Local
Rule 5.0 for further instructions. Upon approval of the Presiding Judge, the court will schedule
the canference and assign the case for a setllement conference.

2) MEDIATION

Mediation is a voluntary, flexible, and confidential process in which a neutral third party facilitates
negotiations. The goal of mediation is to reach a mutually satisfactory agreement that resolves
alf or part of a dispute after exploring the interests, needs, and priorities of the parties in fight of
relevant evidence and the law.

(A) MEDIATION SERVICES OF THE BAR ASSOCIATION OF SAN FRANCISCO, in
cooperation with the Supenor Court, is designed to help civil litigants resolve disputes before
they incur substantial costs in litigation. While it is best to utilize the program at the outset of
litigation, parties may use the program at any time while a case is pending.

Operation; Experlenced professional mediators, screened and approved, provide one
hour of preparation time and the first two hours of mediation time. Mediation time beyond that is
..charged at the mediator's hourly. rate. BASF. pre-screens all mediators based upon strict
educational and experience requirements. Parties can select their mediator from the panels at
www.sibar.org/mediation or BASF can assist with mediator selection. The BASF website
contains photographs, biographies, and videos of the mediators as well as testimonials to assist
with the selection process. BASF staff handles conflict checks and full case management.
Mediators work with parties to arrive at a mutually agreeable solution. The success rate for the
program is 64% and the satisfaction rate is 89%.

ADR-1 oufi5- . ja) . . Page 2
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Cost: BASF charges an administrative fee of $295 per party. The hourly mediator fee
beyond the first three hours will vary depending on the mediator_selected. Waivers of the
administrative fee are available to those who qualify. For more information, call Marilyn King at -
415-782-8905, email adr@sfbar.org or see the anclosed brochure.

(8) JUDICIAL MEDIATION provides mediation with a San Francisco Superior Court
judge for civil cases, which include but are not limited to, personal injury, construction defect,
employment, professional malpractice, insurance coverage, toxic torts and industrial accidents.
Parties may utilize this program at anytime throughout the litigation process.

Operation: Parties interested in judicial mediation should file a Stipulation to Judicial
Mediation indicating a joint request for inclusion in the program. A preference for a specific
judge may be indicated. The court will coordinate assignment of cases for the program. There
is no charge for the Judicial Mediation program,

{C) PRIVATE MEDIATION: Although not currently a part of the court's ADR program,
parties may eléct any private mediator of their choice; the selection and coordination of private
mediation is the rasponsibility of the parties. Parties may find mediators and organizations on
the Internet. The cost of private mediation will vary depending on the mediator selected.

3) ARBITRATION

" An arbitrator Is neutral attorney who presides at a hearing where the parties present evidence
through exhibits and testimony. The arbitrator applies the law to the facts of the case and
makes an award based upon the merits of the case.

(A) JUDICIAL ARBITRATION: When the court orders a case to arbitration it is called
“judicial arbitration”. The goal of arbitration is to provide parties with an adjudication that is
earlier, faster, less formal, and usually less expensive than a trial.

Operatian: Pursuant to CCP 1141.11, all civil actions in which the amount in controversy
is $50,000 or less, and no party seeks equitable rellef, shall be ordered to arbitration. (Upon
stipulation of all parties, other civil matters may be submitted to judicial arbitration.) An arbitrator
is chosen from the court’s arbitration panel. Arbitrations are generally held between 7 and 9
months after a complaint has been filed. Judicial arbitration is not binding untess all paities
agree to be bound by the arbitrator's decision. Any party may request a trial within 60 days after
the arbitrator’s award has been filed. Local Rule 4.2 allows for medialion in lieu of judicial
arbitration, so long as the parties file a stipulation fo mediate after the filing of a complaint.
There is no cost to the parties for judicial arbitration.

(B) PRIVATE ARBITRATION: Although not currently a part of the court’s ADR program,
civil disputes may also be resolved through private arbitration. Here, the parties voluntanily
consent to arbitration. If all parties agree, private arbitration may be-binding and the parties give
up the right to judicial review of the arbitrator’s decision. In private arbitration, the parties select
a private arbitrator and are responsible for paying the arbitrator’s fees.

TO PARTICIPATE IN ANY OF THE COURT'S ADR PROGRAMS, PLEASE COMPLETE THE ATTACHED
STIPULATION TO ADR AND SUBMIT IT TO THE COURT. YOU MUST ALSQ CONTACT BASF TO ENROLL iN
THE LISTED BASF PROGRAMS. THE GOURT DOES NOT FORWARD COPIES OF STIPULATIONS TO BASFE.

ADR-t o03/135 ' . (ja) : Page
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CASE NUMBER: CGC-16-552324 MARIA RAMOS VS. AM RETAIL GROUP, INC. A DELAWAR
NOTICE TO PLAINTIFF

A Case Managément Conference is set for:

DATE: NOV-02-2016 .
TIME:  10:30AM

PLACE: Department 610
400 McAllister Street
San Francisco, CA 94102-3680

All parties must appear and comply with Local Rule 3. _

CRC 3.725 requires the filing and service of a case management statement form CM-110

no later than 15 days before the case management conference. However, it would facilitate
the issuance of a case management order without an appearance at the case
management conference if the case management statement is filed, served and lodged in
Department 610 twenty-five (25) days before the case management conference.

L St

Plaintiff must serve a copy of this notice upon each party to this action with the summons and
complaint. Proof of service subsequently filed with this court shall so state. This case is

eligible for electronic filing and service per Local Rule 2,11. For more information,
please visit the Court's website at www.sfsuperiorcourt.org under Online Services.

ALTERNATIVE DISPUTE RESOLUTION POLICY REQUIREMENTS

IT IS THE POLICY OF THE SUPERIOR COURT THAT EVERY CIVIL
CASE PARTICIPATE IN EITHER MEDIATION, JUDICIAL OR NON-
JUDICIAL ARBITRATION, THE EARLY SETTLEMENT PROGRAM OR
SOME SUITABLE FORM OF ALTERNATIVE DISPUTE RESOLUTION
PRIOR TO A TRIAL.

(SEE LOCAL RULE 4)

Plaintiff must serve a copy of the Aiternative Dispute Resolution Information Package on each
defendant along with the complaint. All counsel must discuss ADR with clients and opposing
counsel and provide clients with a copy of the Alternative Dispute Resolution Information
Package prior to filing the Case Management Statement.

[DEFENDANTS: Attending the Case Management Conference does not take the

place of filing a written response to the complaint. You must file a written

response with the court within the time limit required by law. See Summons.]

Superior Court Alternative Dispute Resolution Coordinator
400 McAllister Street, Room 103

San Francisco, CA 94102

(415) 551-3869

See Local Rules 3.3, 6.0 C and 10 B re stipulation to judge pro tem.
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CORPORATION SERVICE GOMPAHNHY'

Notice of Service of Process

null / ALL
Transmittal Number: 15332419
Date Processed: 06/30/2016

Primary Contact: Cathy Hlavacek
AM Retail Group, Inc.
7401 Boone Ave No.
Brookdyn Park, MN 55428

Copy of transmittal only provided to: Charlie Kettering
Sarah Schiemann
Entity: AM Retail Group, Inc.
Entity iD Number 2731651
Entity Served: AM Retail Group, inc.
Title of Action: Maria Ramos vs. AM Retail Group, Inc.
Document{s) Type: Summons/Complaint
Nature of Action: Class Action
Court/Agency! San Francisco County Superior Gourt, California
Case/Reference No: CGC 16-552324
Jurisdiction Served: California
Date Served on CSC: 06/29/2016
Answer or Appearance Due: 30 Days
Originally Served On: CSC
How Served: Personal Service
Sender Information: Richard D. Lambert

916-235-7140

Information contained on this transmittal form is for record keeping, notification and forwarding the attached document(s). It does not
constitute a legal opinion. The recipient is responsible for interpreting the documents and taking appropriate action.

To avoid potential delay, please do not send your response to CSC
CS8C is SAS70 Type Hi certified for its Litigation Management System.
2711 Centerville Road Wilmington, DE 19808 (888) 630-2882 | sop@cscinfo.com
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